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Forward

The National  Apprentice and  Industrial Training  Authority (NATTA) has  been
established under part 11 of the Tertiary and Vocational Education Act No 20 of 1990
as the successor o the National Apprenticeship Board (NAB) incorporated under the
National Apprenticeship Act No, 49 of 1971 and has established its identity for 41 vears
by expanding responsibilities and services and the authority provides o huge service in

the feld of Vocational Training,

Combining personal skills with the work environment, the apprentices who are trained
under the theme “a knight Tor the workplace™, establish the identity of the National
Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority in the field of Vocational Training.

Further, by achieving our targets and objectives every year, vouths are provided
opportunities to get vocational education in a systematic manner through our knowledge

and experience.

This annual report presents the performance of NAITA during the year 2011, Despite
constraints and  performing under a competitive environment, NAITA through its
objectives has been able o cater 1o the needs of the society, Therefore, inguestionably
it is noteworthy that when completing the tasks, commitment ol the statl, support of the

public and private sector were provided.

I take this opportunity to thank the Board of Management for its guidance, the supporl
extended by the stall who worked hard and for government and non- government

organizations who provided training opportunities for traimees.

Chandana Arunadews
Charman

National Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority
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Preface

In the terms of clause 14 of the Financial Act of 38 of 1971, the Authority is required to
submit an Annual Report.

[his report contains three sections, information regarding the performance of Lraining
programs, development programs related to training and other related activities. the sum-
mary of annual accounts and the Auditor General's Report,

he Annual Report 2012 has been prepared based on the information provided by
Managers of 25 District Othices which pertorm under six clusters, the Heads of National
Institutes and Head of Department of cach Division in the Head Ollice. This report has

been prepared analvzing and summarizing the information provided.
prey yanyg 2 I

Planning and Development Division
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History

National Apprentice Board with the government involvement has been established under
National Apprentice Act no 49 0f 1971 as a remedy for the youth unrest experienced 41
years ago in Sri Lanka, With the support of United Nations Development Programme
and the International Labour Organization activities such as development of lesson
modules relating to Apprentice Training, constitute standards for Training Programmes,
prepare guidelines relevant to Distance Education, awarding Skilled certificates were
achieved through National Apprentice Board,

In 1983, Apprentice Training [nstitute has been established with the financial assistance
ol German Federal government as the first National Training Institute at No.581, Galle
Road, Katubedda, In 1985, with the collaboration of United Nations Development
Programme and International Labour Organization the second National Training
Institute has been established as Technicians Training Institute at 18 Milepost, Temple
Road, Katunayaka,

In 1989, with the assistance of Japanese Government, Automobile Training Institute
has been established as the third National Training Institute at No.07, Dr.Danister De
Silva Mw, Orugodawaththa , Wellampitiya,

In order to enhance the capacity of the institute, National Apprentice and Industrial
'raining Authority has been established under part I1 of the Tertiary and Vocational
Education Act No, 20 ol 1990,

Aflerwards, the management of the National Apprentice and Industrial Authority was
dissolved to Provincial Offices and it was furthered to District Offices and Cluster
Offices gradually.

By 2012, the management and the training process of National Apprentice and
Industrial Training Authority functioned under six cluster offices covering 25 districts

ol the country. o
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Introduction

Legal Structure

The National Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority has been established under
part I ol the Tertiary and YVocational Education Act No.20 of 1990 as successor 1o the
National Apprenticeship Board (NAB) icorporated under the National Apprenticeship
Act No, 49 ol 1971

By successtully completing duties the authority is spending the 41 year and it's worthy
to mention the members who handed a great strength for the long journey in the field of

Vocational Training from 1971 to 2012,

Training Division, comprised of Recruitment Division, Training Division, In Plant Train-
ing Division, Career Guidance Division functions 1o achieve objectives: plan training
activities, inspect and coordinate and maintain.

Administration Division is comprised ol Officer Recruitment Division, Transport
Division, Construction and Maintenance Division, Legal Division, Staft’ Development
Division and this provides a strong foundation for the future endeavors by elficiently
consuming and managing physical and human resources,

[his is consisted of Procurement Division, Stores, Payments Division, Salary Division
and Book Keeping Division and the annual budget prepared by the Planning Division

according o the Action and Cooperative Plan drives the institute forward in a lively

manner.,
Qll I. _D. o i

I'his, comprised of Curriculum Development Division, Quality Management Division,
National Voeational Qualitication Division, National Trade Test Division, Assessment
Division, Certilicate Division provides a great strength to achieve objectives of the
authority by providing resources required 1o conduet effective and systematic training

and by supplying required instruments to develop quality of apprentices and the institute.

i
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Ihis division paves a way for the National Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority to
coordinate with the other institutes by providing information to government and non-gov-
ernment institutions including the line ministry by obtaining the progress covering all
District Offices, National Institutes, and Administration, Quality, Finance and Training
Divisions through the management system and preparing monthly progress reports, quar-

ter reports, annual reports and other reports based on the requirement.

lit Divisi
By controlling the internal auditing activities of National Apprentice and Industrial Train-
ing Authority, The Auditor General's Office combines with other institutes and the line
ministry. Further, it does a great service by providing information required for manage-
ment of the institute and by coordinating audit and management committees for systemat-

e maintenance of the transparency of internal management and activities of the institute,
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OUR VISION

To be the institution that excels in development ol youth competencies to industrial re-

quirements.

MISSION

Providing industry based Vocational and Technical Training tor youth to develop
oceupational competencies through well formulated skills training programs o meet the

well-disciplined and dedicated manpower requirements in the industry.

. Attracting most suitable and deserving youth.

. Being o highly motivated well-structured professional body,

. With the involvement of dedicated cooperation of training providers and donors.

. Contributing to the achievement ol the national objective of competency based
CUONO Y.

Vil
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2012........

Recruitments 12613
Targets Achieved 106%0
Capital Expenditure 330.05

Achieving the targets in the vear 2012, 32613 apprentices have been enrolled and 27069
apprentices who completed the training have been socialized,

Certificates have been issued for 21970 apprentices under different trades,

Fhis year, vocational training provided by the authority was planned to suit the job market
and special attention was paid Tor the fields of agriculture and hotel industry,

[his year, the Training Division implemented a training Institute alone with Colombo-03
ETA MELCO institute for elevator mechanics and according to the Memorandum of
understanding signed with the Ministry of Rehabilitation and Prison Reforms it was ar-
ranged to provide training and issue certificates under different trades for prisoners. In
order Lo inspect training activities, inspection and evaluation sessions in cluster levels
covering all districts were conducted and prevailed and prevailing issues pertaining to
establishments have been identified and remedies have been provided.

his year, Tally Accounting Package has been introduced to systematize financial

activities,

Vil
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Inthe reviewed year, Basic Training Centers, English language labs have been implemented
and NVQ certificates have been awarded with the aim of minimizing the number of drop

outs and attracting more apprentices.

With the collaboration of the Department of Agriculture an island wide program was
implemented to train Agrarian Marketing Technical Assistants. Accordingly, the first
program implemented in Galle, Puttlam, Kurunagala, Monaragala, Anuradhapura,

Polonnaruwa Districts has been completed

The key stone was placed to construct a national level training institute at Kilinochehi
with the corporation ol the German republic and GIZ organization and the financial
assistance of the~ KI'W institute and it is expected to hand it over to youths by the year

2015.

As the first step of the above program, training instruments and other required goods valued
one million curos were obtained for the NAITA Training Institute in the Kilinochchi
District Office under GIZ-VTN project and those training courses are conducted

successtully.
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This year, a new Library, a Center for English Language , two Laboratories with
new instruments and training instruments valued rupees thirty million and a Centre for

Electronic Studies were established at the Automobile Engineering Training Institute.

All island first and second places have been won for the creations exhibited at the

“SahasakNipaum™ (thousand creations) organized by the Association of New Innovators,

When Institute of Engineering Technology is considered, opening ol a new Student
FEducation Centre, a Center of New Inventions, and participating in national level

exhibitions such as Inco 2012, Future Minds are some ol the achievements of this year,
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Apprentice Training Institute combined with the Ministry of Industry conducted an
Entrepreneurship Development Program related to the field of Carpentry in Polonnaruwa
District.

Several first, second and third places were obtained in the fields of Electronic, Masonry,
Computer Graphic Designing, Carpenter at ‘Future Touch®, the All Island Skills

Competition,

A series of programs have been conducted under the theme “will win the world of work’
for school students in the Anamaduwa region of Puttlam Education Zone of Puttlam
District. Further, founding an Information Technology Association with the participation

of old students of NAITA is also another improvement of this year,
Approval from the Department of Management Service and the Treasury has been
obtained with the permission of the Salary and Carder Committee for the newly prepared

Scheme of Recruitment which had been a major requirement of the authority.

Changing the administration system, a Chairman, a Deputy Chairman and a Director

Gieneral were appointed as pioneering leaders for the authority

Xi
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1. Corporate Information
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971,5¢ layawardanapura Mawatha,
Welikada, Rajagiriya

Institute of En;inu;r-i_r-\i?écﬁ ﬁu'l'nn
18" Mile Post, Temple Road,
Katunayake

Mprenﬂuship Triinlnl_lai_tii'l;l—te
581,Galle Road, Katubedda,
Maratiuwa

Automaobile Engineering Training
Institute

07,0r.Denister de Silva Mawatha,
Orugodawatta

District Office-Ampara
No.06, G.5.Lane, Kalmunaikudi
13, Kalmunal

000 % * % 3

District Office- Anuradhapura
Airport Road, Anuradhapura

District Office- Badulla
Ne. 10/4, Malwatte Road, Badulla

District Office- Batticaloa

Mo, 16/1, New Kalmunai Road,
Batticaloa

District Office- Colombo

242, Havelock Road, Colombo 05

District Office- Galle

No.393, Wakwella Road, Julgaha,
Galle v
District Office- Gampaha
85/1, Weera Patumaga, Ja Ela Road,
Gampaha

District Office- Hambantota
Mo, 34, Mihindu Mawatha, Tangalle

District Office- lafina
No.O7, Temple Road, Jaffna

District Office- Kaluthara
326/7, Main Street, Kaluthara

o ]

S—_—

| District Office- Kandy

MNo. 108/2B, Thiwanka Bodhi
Mawatha, Kandy

| District Office- Monaragala

| No.B6/A, Kandy Road, Nuwara Eliya

' District Office- Puttlam

District Office- Kegalle

No. 440, Kandy Road, Mepitiya,
Kegalle .

District Office- Kilinochchi

Kandy Road, Anandapuram,
Kllinochchl

District Office- Kurunegala
Negombo Road, Malkaduwawa,
Kurunegala

District Office- Matara

No. 2 7A, Open University Road, Nupe,
Matara i

District Office- Mannar

952/1,0ld Moor Street, Nallayar
Street, Mannar

District Office- Matale

No.11, Temple Road, Mandanawala,
Matale

Kachcherl Complex, Monaragala

District Office- Mullativu
Mankulam Road, Mulliyawallai,
Mullativu

District Office- Nuwara Eliya

District Office- Polonnaruwa
A6, Mahawell Quarters, New Town,
Polonnaruwa

Molawatta, Medagama Road,
Madampe

District Office- Rathnapura

Vidyala Road, New Town, Rathnapura
District Office- Trincomalee

Mo 58, Arunagiri Road, Trincomalee

District Office- Vavniya
Np.49/21, 1" Lane Kovil Road,

| Kurumankadu, Vavniya
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02. Board of Management

1. Dr.TissaJinasena (Up to September 2012)
Mr.ChandanaArunadewa Silva (Since October 2012)
Chairman
National Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority,
971, Shi JavawardanapuraMawatha,

Welikada,

Rajagiriya.

r f Mr. Lesli Weeramanthri (Since December 2012)
Vice Chairman
National Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority,
971, Shi JayawardanapuraMawatha,
Welikada.
Rajagiriva.

3. Mr. A.R.Deshapriya
Additional secretary
Ministry ol Youths Affairs and Skills Development
“Nipunatha Pivasa”
3542, Elvitigala Mawatha,

Colombao 2,

4. Mr. A Kumarasiri
Additional Director General,
Departmentollixternal Resources,
Ministry of Finance and Planning,
Colombo 02,

3. Mr.B.H.S.Suraweera
Director General (Acting)
Fertiary and Vocational Education Commission
3452 Elvitigala Mawatha,

Colombao 5,
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Mr.Raja Hewabowila
Chatrman.

Silicone Coatings,

69, Buthgamuwa Rd,

Rajagiriya.

Mr. Buddika lddamalgoda
Attornety - at- low,
“Chandana”
Maoonamal Place, Weera Mw,

Pannipitya.

Dr. Shantha Gamage

Senior Leeturer,

Department of Physics,

University of SriJayawardanapura,

MNugepoda,

Mr.S.C.Weerasckara
Group Director

Maharaja group of Company
157, T B Java Mawatha,

Colombo [0

Mr.keerthi Gunawardana
Managing Director (Lucky Yopurt)
No 812 Die Melwaththa R,

Feoswatti, Nawala
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Mr, H.S Gonsal

Managing Director

Nivasie Developers (Pvt) Lid,
No 49/16, Galle Rd,

Colombe 03

Ms.Keshala Jayawardana
Chatrman,

Regional Development Bank
12 Floor,

Excess Tower

No. 278, Union Place,

Colombo 02,

Dr. Anura P, Jayasooriya

semor Lecturer,

Department of Basic Veterinary Science,

Faculty of Veterinary Medicine,

University of Peradeniva, Peradeniva,

Mr.Hiththetiyage Udaya
Company Director
No.31, Isadin Town,

Matara
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(4. Objectives of the Authority
Objectives of the Authority as listed under clauses 37 (1) are:

(a) Planning, organizing and providing of vocational training.

(b)  Specilying standards in relation to vocational training.

(c) Conducting of examinations and issuing ol certificates and other awards in relation
to vocational training.

(d) Conducting National Trade Test,

(&) Conducting research and development in vocational training,
(1) Holding of competitions to promote the development of various skills,
() Developing the training capacities ol establishments and other institutions by

providing vocational training.

(hy  Toadvise the Tertiary and Vocational Education Commissions with regard to
vocational training,

(i) To have links with institutions in Sri Lanka and abroad having similar objectives
and to equate and or validate certificates, diplomas and degrees in allied subjects

and courses,
05. Main Activities / Programs of NAITA

(a) Provision of vocational training by the Industry Based Apprenticeship Training
conducted jointly with public and private sector organizations and Dual
Apprenticeship Training by 03 National Institutes and Apprenticeship Training
Centers established around the country,

(h) Provision of On-the-Job Training to trainees of other Vocational Training
Organizations,

(c) Provision of In-Plant Training to engineering undergraduates of the Universities
of Moratuwa, Peradeniya, Ruhuna and to students following various diploma
COLITSES,

i) Conduct of National Trade Tests and certificates ol National Vocational
Qualification (N.V.Q) through assessments by Recognition of Prior Learning
(R.P.L) for craftsmen who have acquired skills informally,

(e) [raining of Trainers of Vocational Training Institutes,

(n Conduet Career Guidance Programs for school children, school leavers and
other target groups,
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06. Mode of Training and Other Related Activities

6.1, Mode of Training

I'raining provided by NATTA can be broadly categorized as follows:

¢ Enterprise Based Apprenticeship Training

. Institutional/Centre Based Apprenticeship Dual Training
. [rn=Plant Training

. On-=the-lob Trainimg

Ihis represents the major part ol training out of many conducted by the institute and the
National Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority is the only institute which is given
the authority to dobnterprise Based Apprenticeship Training, Under this mode of training
the trainees are attached o an enterprise throughout his/ her training period to improve
skills by learning and doing.

Fhe trainee could abtain training under any one of the following:

. Cralt level

. Situational level

' Village level

. National Apprentice Certificate (NAC)

Craft Apprenticeship Training
Cralt Apprenticeship Training can be implemented after signing an agreement between Lthe
authority and entrepreneurs to train apprentices according to the Sector Specilic Training

Standards developed by National Industrial Training Advisory Committees (NITACS),
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Situational Apprenticeship Training
Apprentices are provided skills specific to the region and to the enterprise to which they
are attached and also according to a training guide prepared by NAITA in consultation

with trainer /emplover,

Village Level Apprenticeship Training

Sinee, the training cannot be provided according to the training standereds developed for
Craft Apprenticeship Training, Situational Apprenticeship Training has been introduced
with the aim of trainig apprentices at regional level using available resources. The train-

ing standereds are developed by NAITA combined with trainer / employer.

National Apprenticeship Certificate (NAC)

National Apprenticeship Certificate aims at providing opportunities for trainees who are
below the required level of education, to obtain a national level certificate.

Under this scheme enrolled trainees are given a two months basic training after a one

week ol counseling program.,
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After completing the basic training, trainees are provided a Craft Apprenticeship Training
for 12 months, The NVQ level iii and NAC are awarded by the authority for those who
complete the training and pass the formal test,

The relevant theoretical knowledge is delivered through Basic Training and Distance
Education for Enterprise Based Craft Apprentices and National Apprenticeship Certificate
holders.

Further, apprentices are given Basic Training at a relevant Training Centre for a sufficient
period of time to cover basic theory and related practical skills and also are provided
with printed theory lessons / modules through postal mode to study the subject matter.
Answers for questions which are available at the end of each module are sent by the ap-
prentices to the NAITA and returned to them after suitable corrections are made,

NAITA also organizes week-end classes periodically to solve the problems and difficulties
connected with the printed lessons which trainees come across,

In addition, these trainees are provided English lessons to enhance their knowledge on
utilization ol English language,

11
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Under this scheme, trainees are directly enrolled 1o a National Level Training
Institute or o a District/Regional Apprenticeship Training Center for a specific
period and afterwards they are sent to a private or public institute for On-the-job
Training.Practical and theoretical knowledge is provided by the training institutes
or training centers, In the reviewed year, in addition to 03 National Institutes,
NAITA operated |11 Training [nstitutes. The duration of the courses varies (rom
six months to four years,

In-Plant Training

As per clause 38 (C) of TVE Act No. 20 of 1990, NAI'TA offers In-Plant Training
for undergraduates of the Engineering Degree courses at Moratuwa, Peradeniya
and Ruhuna Universities and diploma courses conducied by universities and other
tertiary level educational institutions.



National Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority
Annual Report - 2012

4. On-the-Job Training

NAITA conducts program ol 06
months duration of On-the-Job
Training (OJT) for students
who complete the Institutional
Training at other Yocational
I'raining Institutes, This program
is generally activated for persons
who have followed Institutional
Training in  Technical col-
leges,  Vocational — Training
Authority  (VTA), National
Youth Service Council (NYSC)
and any accepted Government

[ Private Vocational Training
sector organizations that need
the services of NAITA, in following On-the-Job Training,

The final Trade Test is conducted by the NAI'TA Head Office for the apprentices those who
complete the Craft Apprenticeship Training and the trainees under National Apprenticeship
Certificate. However, with the establishment of cluster offices it is expected to dissolve
responsibilities and due to that cluster offices in Colombo, Gampaha and Ratnapura
Districts which belong to the third category of cluster, only conduct the final Trade Test.
In addition, the Head Office conducts the National Vocational Qualification (NVQ)
assessment and the National Trade Test (NTT). The relevant District Offices conduct the
final Trade Test for Situational and Village Level Apprentices. The final Trade Test of
National Institutes is conducted by the institute itself.

All certificates of the National Institutes are issued with the signatures of the Chairman of
the Authority and Director/Principal or Registrar.
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6.2 Other Main Activities Performed

[ E rI1J1:

This program conduets Trade Tests and issue “Certilicate of Proficiency™ to those who
possess relevant skills. Informally trained, practicing craftsmen mostly use this scheme to
obtain a recognized certificate to uplift their local and foreign employment opportunities.

AL present, there are three levels of certificates namely Grade I11, Grade 11 and Grade |
which means semi —skilled, skilled and highly skilled levels respectively.

NTTs are conducted in 53 trades/occupations inclusive of 10 operative (Machinery) trades
and a “certificate of competency™ in relation to operation of computers (Sri Lanka Computer
Driving License -SLCDL} is issued,

The conduction of NTT is limited to trades for which National Competency Standards are
not yet available. The N'TT is currently being replaced by Recognition of Prior Learning
(RPL) in the National Vocational Qualification (NV(Q) system.

. Development of National Competency Standards (NCS)

NAITA is a mandated organization for developing National Competency Standards, The
authority has been mandated by the Act to develop and validate National Competency
Standards. Preparation and validation of relevant National Competency Standards
of trades recognized by the Tertiary and Vocational Education Commission are also
conducted under this,

According to the priority trade occupations identified by Tertiary and Vocational
Education Commission, National Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority develops,
revises and validates National Competency Standards through Development Committees
and National Industrial Training Advisory Committees (NITACs). NITAC comprises of
trade/sector specific specialists, NITAC represents approximately 16 members in each
commitiee,
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Training of Trainers

These programs were implemented in 1992 with the sponsorship of the Swiss Contact
Program in collaboration with Switzerland. The main aim of this program is to improve
pedagogical skills of trainers in Public and Private Institutes. The lessons are conducted
under different phases without making hindrance to the process of their working place.

’ Entrepreneurship Development

These programs are focused on two categories, passed out and trainees in the system,
Entreprencurship Development programs are aimed (o provide knowledge and skills
on entrepreneurship to prepare trainees for self” employment after completion of their
training.

. Carrier Guidance
Carrier Guidance programs are conducted to increase awareness about Vocational

Training and Job Market conditions specially among school leavers and school students.
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*  Staff Development and Personality Development

These programs focus on developing skills and competencies of the stalT of NAITA, The
programs are conducted under ditferent phases without making hindrance (o the process
of their working place.

From 2011 onwards every apprentice recruited to the system is provided a Positive
Thinking and Personality Development Training,
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06. Data Analysis and Presentation
In the reviewed vear 32613 apprentices were recruited under different classification to

the authority, When this number is analytically compared with the year 2011, it depicts a
0.4% development.

Graph 01 ;: Summary of Training Performance — 2012

Graphol Summery of Training Performance-
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This year, one of the significant factor is that apprentices have been enrolled exceeding the
targets given for enrolments. Further, being able to enroll apprentices exceeding targets in

every month is another achievement of this year,
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Graph 2 — Monthly enrolment targets and enrolments (Except In plant Training)
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It is significant 1o have been recorded that 27169 apprentices have completed Training
under Different Classifications and that number exceeding the number of apprentices who
have completed this training in the previous year (26037) and the record that the highest
number who completed training in the history of NAITA. (Table 01)
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Graph 3 —= Enrolment under Different Classifications — 2012
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About 26500 apprentices who have been enrolled under different classification,

maintained in training capacity during the year. Even though this is a down ward situation

when compared to the year 2011(29609), there is a considerable development (24711)

compared to the vear 2010,

The highest percentage of recruitment of apprentices under different classification was

recorded at Enterprise Based Apprenticeship level It depicts 58% (16061) out of the

total (excepl in plant training) recruitments.
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Table  2- Summary of Training
Performance (Institutional /Centre
Based and Enterprise based)- 2012 been recruited lor training centers situated

in Districts, This is a 15 % development

Inthe yearofreview, 8379 apprentices have

— - when compared to the previous year, As a
Number

Type Reoruited result, there is a noticeable improvement

2011 | 2012 in the number of recruitments for the

National Vocational National Vocational Qualification. (Table
Qualification (NVQ) 2)

2917 | 4195

Non National Vocational
Clualification (Non-NV())

= 24636 23469
Tolal

27553 | 27668

Graph 4- Summary of Training Performance- 2012
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When Enterprise Based Apprenticeship Training is considered a highest number ol
recruitment (6572) recorded under Situational level and 6025 recruitments recorded
under Craft level apprenticeship training.
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Graph § -Remaining in Training under Different Classifications- 2012
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Further analyzing this classification, number of apprentices remained in training by the

end of the year is 5670 and 3961 Crafl level apprentices have completed the training.

7342 Craft level apprentices and 4528 Situational level apprentices have remained in the

training capacity by the end of the year. (Graph 1)
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Table 3

Fabily 03: Sumimery of Training ferformance - 2011

Cluster | District Rumbwre al et Oropoul Wumibar ol camphatd . Mo al W-raining
Male ||:r-_1rmlu [mml haale Female |Total il Female  [Total il i Pl | Total
1, Enterprise Based Apprantionship and Dual Trainng i =
latna A 521 130 [ A 153 20 il 1223 R4 il 1)
Killiroehe 315 110 fill 117 85 202 141 53 1084 EL 211 ARA
1 Mulatiu | 19% A 24 i 0 132 1i6H i Al 175 415
auniya 142 ) 654 L 1 167 224 235 A4 05 5 | I
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B Gallie I 4] 11 LE) - (47 M5 307 pL S I AL 1138
Matara ) L 1331 140 194 176 261 48 i it Toel 1272
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2.Part Time Coursis 265 pul Ay 110 i1 133 nt 571 1278 617 1Al 1217
Sulr Tenal 105407 124937 26460 4419 il fi5A1 (iEt] 11483 EEEEL 126G EA32 21430
Institiites '
ol
Enginaaer
g
Teckala
iy EET I - 2 13 15 Al A R O 10 FLE] 1378
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Mational ile
Institutes Anginasr
Iraining
Institutes 240 il A6 65 ] il 433 I fLER] £l BB
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(S5
Training
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Table 4: Summary of Training Performance of full time courses (District
Training Centers) - 2012

Number in
: Number Number Training as
Cluster IREEIS Recruited | Completed | at :
I _ 2012/12/31
Jaffna 324 311 218
CKilinochehi | 397 | "332 168
Cluster | _MullthTl:-'u . _102 . 41 ﬁlﬂ_
Vavuniya i :'?_95] 1}'.5; 184
= Mannar 115 86 | 4-?_
i Anurmlhnp[ifu N 29{]__ E_ﬂ_ _],_ﬁ?
: Puluﬁnﬁruw:l 430 _EEE L 69
Cluster2 po————"" e
Trincomalee 505 292 385
Puttalam T 245 #_229 162
Colombo 698 1090 | 534 |
Cluster3 {'immmhnm” 299 165 _111?
|Ratnapura | 325 358 306
Kuranagala 439 304 45.';'_
Kegalle i 327 110 240
Cluster4 | Kandy B EFEr ___5_2-5___ 375 |
Matale 258 592 113 |
__]‘\rll,n_.\_faruuliy_n _ 3 494 170 |
Ampara - 444 177 294
Clusters | Badulla I 290 165”” 19?“
_M'ﬁnuragulu 178 2—51- _ 1?3_
_____ Mpl_(illll’.h:ll"ﬂ 235 | 3U_Ele 118
- Galle 419 419 399
Cluster6 - - ' '
Matara : 426 331 A47
Hambanthota 502 401 2?"::!__
Total 8379 8251 5716
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Further studying the District Training Centre and Regional Training Centers, the highest
number of recruitment for Apprenticeship Trainingrecorded in Colombo District (698)
while lowest (52) recorded in Mullaittivu Distriet.

Implementation of training programs for prisoners combined with the Ministry of
Rehabilitation and Prison Reforms has been a key factor which has influenced to record

high amount in Situational level training.

Table 5: Performance of Training Institutes — 2012
Institute of Engineering Technology- Katunayaka

Number in
Dur Number Number -
Recruited Completed Training as at
T ; o . ary
I'rade o Ipletcd AT
n

. rr— | S e, _—

| mae | "'L:"" rotal | Mals ’“;“" Total | wate | " ":.'MI fatal
Bullding and at |28 | 75 | 78 | a4 | 112 | 267 | 107 | a74
Structure 4 ;

Clvll —— | S| ST
Water 4 i 17 23 2 22 24 34 76 110
Environment _ — R | Ny :
Highway and 4 21 2 23 | 28 4 an | a4 14 113
Railway - - |
Flectrical |

A6 5 | &1 an o a¥ 182 40 222
: Power 4
Elect
rical | Telecommuni 4 12 10 | 22 | 23 g 2 | BB 25 111
 cation i L | o
£ : y . 19 T
Electronics 4 1) fi 15 21 12 a3 a0 51e]
Mec | Automotive 4 20 {20 | 10 ] 10 | 80 0
hande |— B I R |
al | Geners! 4 | 51 1 | @1 61 | 221 | 1 222
Marine | , | 19 19 | 24 a7 | T
e ) 109 ]
Total | am BB | 209 | 283 | 90 | 373 " 2682 1378
]
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Automobile Engineering Training Institute- Orugodawatta

INENS

Amtumubile Mechanic iSpeciul)

Automobile Electricinn{Special)

MI.LL:lﬁjII!l“l:Sp-L'i.'in[I =R

Aokl !‘ui-n'ﬁﬂﬁpuuhili

Autwmobile Tinker/
Weldeid Special )

Automabile Al Conditioning

Sub Total

{.umputm"-.-{[u-xi|Hlmrﬂ;-cin1;m: '

Durati | Number Recruited Bumber Completed ::u::]':irf rlr;f : Irﬂ“mm =
il e
I':'I.:Iu Female | Total E’Iu?o_ | Fnrﬁiﬂ_ r'r_Em _Mal.u. [ ramale | Total
3 132 132 | B0 a0 i 4B
& T2 a3 36 174 174
3 20 201 14 14 a1 a3
—._—.-.T— i = S — :
10 i 70 29 208 1040 100
1102 54 i 28 20 i 78
oo S N — S }-
2 28 2B 20 20 45 45
1 20 46l 60 16 | i) KU 19 39 58
k1 40 l 436 | 233 | 39 2712 l B25 39 aed4
S B L | BEEESR S—— —

B
LA

Prarati | Mol Beeniiied Mumiher Complened | Bumber (o Ueatnig as
i al 20 200281
Maka | "‘L“T[ Foral | Ml "‘1_"" Total | Male F':‘“' ITqu
:::I!' & Al condition o 28 28 an 20 52 K2
echanic i . N e
Electriclan 3 it - G| | h2 184 | a4
Electronie Craftsman B 1] 66| a2 32| 68 o]
Fitter 3 & | 27 20 20 [ 72|
| Mlachinist 4 5 | 821 M el e |7
Carpenter 2|88 1 o8| 38 a6 00 100
Construction Supervisor 11402 24 6| 30 16 91 24 25 | 4o
Plumber - 2 27| 4 2] 16, 64 54
Hook Rinder 3 2 i i 2 6 i 2 2
Information & . . .
| Communication Technology | ! ) 18 9 _""_t_i 1 L 13 e b b _:!'}__
Ciraphic Deslgner _ 1 24 6| d0| 10| 2] 22] 18 Al 27
Offser Machine Operator 1] 1a 10 @ ] 1) 8 ]
3D Animation 11/2 14 | Il 28 17 a 20 18 4| 22
Mattional Diploma in 1 B
Information &[T N2 i i 14 1 I 22
| Communleation Technology ) R - N
Uistal 418 45 | 464 | 282 48 ) 330 TA5) 46 | T61
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When performance of the National Institutes in the year of review is considered
436 apprentices for Automobile Engineering Training Institute at Orugodawatta, 464
apprentices for Apprenticeship Training Institute at Katubedda, 229 apprentices for
National Diploma in Engineering in the Institute of Engineering Technology have been
recruited, (Table 5)

By the end of the year 2012, 975 apprentices under different training trades have completed

and 3003 apprentices have been recorded in the training capacity by the end of the year.
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Table 6: Summary of the Performance of Training of Part time courses — 2012

District l Number Recruited I. Number cumpm'{uql | Number '['rniniiu}, as
ar 20022031

- o 1 m——
Male | Female | Total | Male | Female | Total | Male | Female | Total |
Colombao 40 93 142 30 a5 115
Galle o owm) a2 al 8] 8| 20| 28
Matara 14 18 620 15 3| 48|
R.i?l-Li'l.'lpur'.l ) o | =] e py ) o
(1 261 4 G 1454 223 120 195 16
Kandy 65 122 187 | 20 41 61 10 41 61
Hambanthota 9 &0 1M1 10 20 40 9 98 47
Kurunagala | gq 125 | 184 | 33 8| 81| 25 & 06
.——1—:—.- : W B e ﬂ - S {— - S PR —
Kesalle 20 at 67 20 a7 a7
Glacnipaaa 200 45| 65| 10| 31| 41| 0| 14| 24
Kaluthara 6| 1 18 I 4] 13 14 1

Sub Total 397 | 815| 1212 188 | 416 | 604 208| 419 | 627

Appmiiiiumhip
Training 182 78| 260 140 55| 195 36 23| 59
Institute

i A [ L | IR M —
Automobile -
Engineering
'['I‘ﬂ'll‘lil'l:lg 3490 167 RR7 | 379 100 479 a7 158 531
[nstitue

P i . ) , —

969 | 1060 | 2020 | 707 | 571 | 1278 | 617 | 600 | 1217
| — e ] . A R R N

Recruitment of 2029 apprentices for part-time courses is a signilicant improvement in the
vear of review. This depicts an 8% development when compared to the year 2011 (1886).
The highest number of recruitments (557) reported Trom the Automobile Ungincering
Training Institute, Further, recruiting 401 apprentices for part-time courses in Ratnapura
District is another significant development, By the end of this year, 1278 apprentices
have completed part-time courses and 1217 recorded to have been remained in training
capacity ( Table 6).
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Table 7: Summary of Training Performance of Full-time Courses-District
Level (Enterprise Based and Centre Based Apprenticeship Training) - 2012

Cluster Distric “ Number Recruited N_u. tnber Campleted | Nl”"hr_‘rl;? zlln‘::r:‘r L ”l__
I Male | Female | Total | Male | Female | Total | Male | Female | Total
Jaffin CB18|  522| 1340| 720 03| 1223| 844| 516 1360

| | Kilinochehi 35| 316 631| 441| 653 | 1094 76| 212 ass
| Shomter ) lianiva 245|195 aa0| 132 18| 300 260| 175 435
Vavuniyi 442 216 658 | 2 235 459 | 395 231 b6 |
i | Mannas 233| 380 613 290| 296| 86| 223| 32| 585
Anuradhapura 209 366 575 ) 140 ) 483 623 2491 180 439

Cluster- | Polonnaruwa 13| 95 508 | 573 132 705 112 43 155
2 Trincomalee | 695  735| 1430| 335 | 498| 834 560| 445| 1005
Putam | 219 300| 519 155|215 370| 182| 199| 381
Clusters Calombo 1845 1206 | 3071 | 1651 898 | 2549 | 2313 67 2987
| Gampaha 1154  a47| 1601, 878 258 | 1136] 1237 373 | 1610
Ratnapura 474 J93 | 1202 294 536 | 830 336 hd6 | BHZ
Kuagala | 030 o21| 13su| 323] 73| 10a6| as3| 529 om2

R L 293 419 712| 09| 393 BO2| 256 | 310|566
h Kindy | 71| 743 1454| 540|560 1100| 477 317 | 794
Matale 231|  325| ss6  36s| ae2| sor| 12| 151 273
Nowallia | 214 | 575 789 160| 25| 88s| 99| 183 282
Baticaloa | 487 | 488 975 | 377|289 | 666 461 in 832

Clustes- | Ampara 670 734 | 1404 507 481 ) 488 | 563 A89 | 1052
5  Budull 395  537| s92| 151| 6do| 791 | 338| asa| 796 |
| Monaragala 233 | 286 519 202 13| 515 352 259 61l
Kaluthara 94| 29| 73| 32| 11| 603| 92| 194| 86

Cluster- | Galle 718  505| 1223 367| 400| 767| 730 426 1156
b Matara 564 |  B19| 1383 66| 578 | 8A4| 566 | 706 1272
Hambanthota 488 | 525 | 1013 382 697 [ 1079 | 401 292| 693
ol 12975 | 12677 25652 | 10275 | 11327 ] 21602 | 12197 | 8651 | 20848 |
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Analyzing  Enterprise  Based  Apprenticeship  Training  and  Institutional/Centre
Based Apprenticeship Training at District level the highest number (3071) of recruitments
recorded from Colombo District while the lowest (440) recorded from Mullaithivu
District. Further, it was recorded that 2987 apprentices maintained in training capacity in
Colombo District while 273 recorded from Mathale District { Table 06),
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Graph 6 - Relationship between Recruitment, Dropouts, Completion and

In-Training
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** The frequency distribution of number recruited, number ol drop outs, number
completed the training and the number remained in training, depicts the uncommonly
deviated Colombo district.

The table no 6 depicts the distribution of the number recruited, number of drop outs,
number completed the training and the number remained in training in each district.
Accordingly, it can be studied the distribution of each component stands from the

middle value,
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I'he number recruited and the number remained in training in the year 2012 depicts
asymmetric frequency distribution from the middle value.
[t can be observed that frequency distribution of the components of number of drop outs
and number completed the training has symmetrically been spread from the middle value.
It can be concluded that number of drop outs, number completed the training have not
proportionately happened in relation to number recruited.
When number ol recruitment is considered in cach district the mean is 900, When
analyzing the recruitments in every district, 83% stands above the mean zone 17% stands
below the mean zone,
But it can be observed that location ol number of drop outs and number completed training
s equally located from its mean. (50% up from the mean and 50% down [rom the mean).
Especially the contradiction between recruitments and the number of drop outs draws
the conclusion that number of drop outs have not increased based on the number of
recruitments and where number ol drop outs has increased in areas where less number of
recruitments were reported.
Moreover, the liner relationship between the above variables will be further deseribed by
the following graphs.
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Graph 07- Correlation between trainee drop outs and number of recruitments,
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The above graph depicts the number recruited and trainee leavers of each Distriet
(number recruited and trainee leavers of Colombo District is shown by the dot no 10)
Accordingly, it can be concluded that a high percentage of training leavers have been
reported in the areas where a less amount was recruited as there isn’t a correlation
between the two components as the value of the two components is distantly located
from the line,



National Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority
Annual Report - 2012

Graph 8- Correlation between number of recruitments and the number
remained in training.
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The above graph illustrates the liner relationship between the number recruited and number
remained in the training capacity by the end of the year in each District, Accordingly, it

can be decided that there is a close relationship between the variable.
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In the year of review, the highest number of recruitments (2241) recorded from Colombo

District under Enterprise Based Apprenticeship Training at district level,

Table 8: Summary of Training Performance (Enterprise Based Apprenticeship
Training - District Level) - 2012

Number in
Cluster District Numllw.r Number Training as
Recruited Completed at

N - i _. | 200202031 |
Jaftna - 1016 912 1142

Kilinochchi 309 562 - 320

Cluster-1 Mullaittivu 338 259 356 |
Vavuniya 359 286 | 442

Mannar _ 498 500 538
Anuradhapura 285 367 319
Polonnaruwa 78 39 | 86 |

Cluster-2 | Trincomalee 925 542 620
Puttalam 274 141 - 219

| Colombo ) 2241 1344 2453

Cluster-3  LGampaha 1237 930 1404
Ratnapura 546 249 | 261

Kuranagala 728 661 429

Kegalle 328 692 269 |

Cluster-4 | Kandy - 731 514 | 368
Matale 298 215 160
Nuwaraeliyn _ 418 _ 391 112

Baticaloa ) 975 666 832

Ampara ~ 960 811 758

Cluster-S | gadulla _ 602 626 599 |
Monaragala 341 281 438

Kaluthara _ 469 303 449 |

Galle 760 - 343 729 |

Cluster-6 [ Matara 905 465 | 825
Hambanthota 440 648 ) 377

Total 16061 12747 | 14505
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In the year 2012, 12747 apprentices completed Enterprise Based Apprenticeship
Training and 14505 apprentices remained in training by the end of the year,
Considering the training leavers, 8553 training leavers reported in the vear of review and
itis 26 % of the total recruitments, This is a considerable development when compared to
the previous year.

It is noteworthy that the causes behind this development had been the less number of

inspectors working in the field when compared to the previous year (Table 1)
Graph 9- Recruitment Targets from 2013-2017 and Recruitments from 2002-2012

The following graph depicts recruitments of the authority from 2002 1o 2012 and
recruitment targets from 2013-2017
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['he above graph shows recruitments of the authority from 2002 to 2012 and also the

predicted recruitment targets,

35



National Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority
Annual Report - 2012

Performance of In Plant Training

In the year of review, 4945 students including degree holders, diploma holders and other
certificate holders have been sent for In-Plant Training (Table 8), This number shows a
slight development when compared to the year 2011,

Table 9: In Plant Training 2012

, I ; . MNumber in Training as at

Mumber Recruited Mumber Completed 3013/13/11

Tyns ) . . :

- - = =
il E| 3| §, 6| E| & & £
= by = - 9 [~ = [ =
Degree 1806 | 685 | 2571 1583 | 495 2078 | ee7| a03 1290
Diploma 1304 | 608 | 2002 | 843 | 604 | 1437 | Bas| 123 769
Certificates 202 an SR 172 5 a7 - - .
| Tate! B2 | 1463 | 445 | 2608 | 1154 | 9752 | 1620 | 436 | 2080

When In-Plant Training of this year is considered, 2571 undergraduates and 2092

diploma expectants includes in the total recruitments, Further, 3752 apprentices have

completed the In Plant Training and 2059 maintained in the training capacity as at end of
the year 2012,
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Figure 10 : Performance of In Plant Training from 2002-2012
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When further analyzing, the line graph number 10 depicts the development of In Plant
I'raining during the last ten years. In the year 2011 and 2012, there seems a considerable

development in the In Plant Training and there is a trend ol increasing i,

37



.

&

=,

National Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority
Annual Report - 2012

Examinations, Vocational Tests and Certification

Table 10 :Examination, Evaluation and Certification — 2012

r _ . _
Number
T of I'rainin Mumber Passed in the | Number
ype g Evaluated Final Certificated
Examination
Craft Level
e 3962 as2| 3201
Sitlmtiunul Level 4077 AR36 [223
Apprenticeship ' b 1680 '
Training Center A2 360 T
Automobile 995
Engineering Training 245 235 -
Institute of Engineering
‘Technology gg2** 396 373
MNational Trade Test 509 5727 4750
| National Vocational | - -
Qualification
(Apprenticeship
Training) | 1431 1379 1217
CBT (Training Centers) 135
Other {Truinées at | N
 NAITA) ) 381 | 349 2083
.‘:‘-l_ih Total _ o 18783 16727 18062
Recognition of Prior
Learning (RPL) 2885 2813  3ar2
Undergraduates 9729 2644
Mational Dlplmi{iﬁh """"""""""""
Technology 180 | 180 180
Other Diploma
Students (On the Job
Training)
S 56| 356 356
Total 24926 22720 21970

** Total number ol examinations held in 2012 (This includes First year, Second vear, Third year and the
Final vear examinations)
kL]
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*** Includes Village level and Situational level apprentices who sat for tests in the year 201 |

When analyzing the trade tests, examinations and certification, 24926 apprentices

completed the final Trade Test in the vear 2012,

Further, it was recorded that there is a 9.8% development in the number passed the ex-
amination, In the year of review. 21970 certificates have been issued under different

classification. (Table 10

Graph 11- Evaluation and Certification 2011-2012
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In the year 2012, 5223 certificates have been issued under Situational Level. [t is reported
that 375 certificates under National Trade Test and 3201 certificates under Craft Level
have been issued. In the year of review, 4724 certificates have been issued under National
Vocational Qualification. In addition to this, National Institutes have issued 968 certifi-

cates out of which 373 certificates had been National Diploma certificates.
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Curriculum Development

In the year of review, 68 curricular have been completed pertaining to different trades

and have sent for relevant sections, This shows a slight development when compared 1o

the previous year.

When studying this further, 41 training standards were developed for identified trades

and 3 new papers were prepared. Moreover, 13 validations, 10 revisions and one

translation were done.

Table 11: Curriculum Development- 2012

Developments

Activities

National C.mnpctt.:-ﬁ'uy Standard (Level

oL ) K

Quantity

17

‘National ('Jumpelencj' Standard .l:.]...E'u'El
5-6)

Preparation of Evaluation Resources

Training Standards

Test Paper

YValidations

Evaluations

Translations

Curriculum

National Competency Standards

Test Papers

National Competency Standards

Evaluation Resources

Test Papers

e |_':_!tu|

i)

11

= |- |-
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Quality Management

In the year 2012, 49 training centers have been registered and 41 courses have been
accredited.

Table 12: Accreditation of Courses and Registration of Training Centers- 2012

Mumber Head Office Lnit Performance
| Accreditations Mumbher of
Conrses 41
2 Number of courses Number of
registered Centers 49

[n addition, laying the foundation to obtain International Quality Certificate (180 9001)

is another significant achievement of this year,



National Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority
Annual Report - 2012

Distance Education

In the year 2012 distribution of 20799 modules among apprentices is a significant

development. This number compared to the year 2011 (12312) is a 69% development.

Table 13: Distance Education- 2012

Cluster | District No of Modules
Issued by the
Curriculum
Development Unit
Killinochehi 108
Cluster | T i § T ——
Mullaittive ERRPIRIY |
| vawnla |- 300
Anuradhapura | 1005
Cluster? | Polonnaruwa 13|
________ Puttalam HETCE __B77 |
Colomhbao G114
Cluster |l RN T 18
Gampaha A DRSPS | /]
o Rathnapura R !
Kurunagala 1055
Kegalle 645
[ :!U.‘ilﬂ r ‘I = R R B e |
Kandy - | 1075
Matale ] - 1085
Nuwaraeliya S 1485 |
Ampara o 50
Clusters | Badulla S 421
Monaragala o 507
. Kaluthara 2367
L lll\ti.."] - ——— ot . S e el
Galle N 984
O | Matara . 1347 |
__ | Hambanthota . N 774
| Head Office . 312
. Towal 20
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This shows the increasing tendency of module distribution during the last ten years.

Graph 12: Distribution of Modules - 2002-2012

25000
20000
15004 |
1004

S0

WL 2003 2004 2005 20 X007 ZOOR 2000 2010 211 2l

Career Guidance

In the year of review, 39162 persons representing different parties have been given carcer

guidance and consultation, In the year 2011 this number was 29991,
Conducting 189 Personality Development Programs before the apprentices were sent for

training is a significant development in this year. In addition 126 programs for school

leavers and 91 programs for school students were conducted.
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Table 14: Career Guidance and Consultation- 2012

Programs
s | |2 E,
‘E o = = E
2 g - - 2
A 3 El g | ¢ 2
g g g 3| §|% 2
by 5| 4 | B
a8l B| 9| 2| 2 ¥
B2 2 E| Hr ':E E
TIEIRIE-REAE: :
&3 d | & & D] S| 2
Head Office 12 12 1] 6 16 | 12474
 Ampara 1 |23 1 1000
Anuradhapura 21 1] 13 1 631 |
Badulla . 10 | 15 2| 1988
Colombo 40 . 1082
Galle 1| 6 2 22| 992
Gampaha 14| 13 3 & 1] 2768
. Hambanthota 16 5[ 10| 81 2106
| Jaffna 4l 20 20 2| 381
Kaluthara _ 9 221 1370
Kandy 3 1 34 6 i1 1270
Kegalle a2 6 10 | 6| 1719
Kilinochehi 13 1 : _ 487
Kurunegala 9 8| 22| 20 | 2] 3658
| Mannar 1 2 262
Matale ) 2 11 216
 Matara 14 / 9 2| 41 1327
Monaragala 1| 20
| NuwaraEliya 1] 2 1] S 2| 366
Polonnaruwa 1 _ 150
Puttalam _ 2| 5 5| 314
Ratnapura 81 101 11 5 9 3454
| Vavuniya & 4l 2| 10 1142
Total | 126 91| 189 | 62| 14| 122 | 39162
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administration of the authority.

12

Table 15: Reervitments and Increments -2012

Deseription

Mumber

Appointments { Permanent) l
Promotions

Ad7

| Prom T oo o 1]

Table 16: Staff Development — Local Training — 2012

Administration and Human Resource Development

Being able to provide increments and recruiting persons for vacant posts according to the

new Scheme of Recruitment during the year ol review is a signilicant development in the

Lol

Table 1'7: Stadf Development - Foreign T'r

aining - 2012

e e

Deseription No. of i

: | participants |

| Postgraduate Degrees 1]
Diploma Programs 5 1

Centifieate Courses 7 |

Awareness Pgt]_.l,_ru_:]_m:-__- _ 325 {'

- 338 |

Program | Country | Number
ST : Participated

HOD Executive Training (Precision Eng) Singapaore b,

HOD Executive Training (Electronics) singapore 5
HOD Executive Training (1T} Singapore

__.. ) S o Indin

Visit  of German supported  Training T h

institutes in Asia- GIZ (VTN) R -

_____ S Thailand
Career Guidance Programme Korea El
—— — r
Total S | 19
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For the purpose of stalt development, training programs were conducted for 338 officers
locally, In the meantime one olficer for post graduate degree program, five officers for a
Diploma Program. seven officers for a Certificate course were sent and 19 officers were

sent for foreign training programs in the vear of review,

Publicity Activities

Publicity Unit of the NAITA has conducted 123 publicity activities covering the island
during the year of review. In addition, this unit has participated in exhibitions and has

covered various programs on behalf of NAITA,

Activities of Information and Planning Division

This section continued to attend collection, analisation and dissemination of various
information within NAITA and other establishments to enable making management
dicisions,

Further, ability to provide information on time by using the computer data base is a
significant development,

Further, action plan of the institute was prepared and a computer program to evaluate and

supervise training activities was introduced and implemented.
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ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.12.2012

NATIONAL APPRENTICE & INDUSTRIAL TRAINING AUTHORITY

During the year under review a total Grant of Rs. 917,000,000/= was released to the Authority by the

Treasury and Rs, 42,171,695 97 recelved as Income as por dolails given below,

Allocation

(Rs.)

Recurrent Expenditure Grant 598,000,000.00

Capilal Expendilure Grant - CF 408 500,000.00

Funds Released
by the Treasury

(Rs.)
586,000,000 00

331,000,000.00

1,007 500,000 00

Add: Estimated Income 42,000 000,00

917,000,00000
42,171 696,97

Total Income for the year

Aid received during the year 2012 from other agencies are indicated below -

Ald Received ( Recurrent ) - schedule - 14 (Page - 44)
Differed Income - 13 (Page - 43)

The following documents are included:-

i. Statement of Financial Position as at 31" December 2012

il Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31* December 2012
lil. Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31% December 2012

iv. Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year ended 31" December 2012

v, Notes to the Accounts for the year ended 31" December 2012

Chandana Arunadeva Silva
Chairman
National Apprantice & Industrial Training Authority,
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1,049 500,000.00
pe—————————

855,171,686 97
Eae e

Value of ltems/Funds

11,374,063.20
93,320,527 8R

104,703 501,08
e —



Page Mz
Mote  Sch, No. Rs) (Rs)
fssats
Won Currant Assets
Proparty, Plant and Equipmant 2z A 2 064 61090022 BAS 367 BRAAT
Captal Work in Progriss 3 21 G 283 088 57 26,242 970,01
1,008 893 988 /0 771 675 BRG 10
Current Assets
Stocks q B 21 0,740, 0349 84 11,366 409 60O
Racalvablas 5 C 22 73,230,621.39 77311 464 10
Daposits, Propayments & Advances ] D 25 10,657 417125 A0 436,018 16
Shart Tarm Invastmints 7 2 T9A08, 19020 38,547 18310
Cashin Transil g 20 11,322,060,81 T A6, 725 06
Cash & Bonk Balances 9 30 31,664, 376,61 41 066 485 86
2256,080,29517 225,218,285 96
Linbilities
Current Liabilities
Payilles 10 H 03,040, 300.26 121,106 840 60
Wet Current Assels/(Liabllities) 131,138,994.85 104,113,345 36
Total Assets 1,140,032,083 64 525,749,204 64
Equity & Liabilities
Mational Apprentice & Industnal Training Fund " K] A 40, 7RO A0d 819 126 00
Capital Reserve 1.401,610.60 1,424,713 60
ME542 37068 306,343 H40.02
Mon Current Liabilitles
Frovision for Gratuity 12 43 140,170,685 67 131,313,006 63
Diffarad income 13 LX GA3, 310,027, 38 386,002 267 50
1,140,035 083,64 526, 748 204 54

Areounting policies and noles page 06 10 62 Torm an integeal part of e Financal Stalements,

Directar Finanon

Foorand on behall of Board of Management

Chandina drunicdea Silva
Chmrman

Eh

11.12.2011

Board of Directors
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Page 2012
rtingd. A (Rs) (Rs)
INCOME
Goyernment Grant - Hecurrenl LRE, DOD, 000 00 G4 05,000 00
Frofil on PU & RTC 1) 41 1,108, 6. 75 0894 06007
Dafarrad Income Transfernadd 13 43 A3,329 527 A8 51,744, 247,32
Other Aid- Recarenl 14 ad 11,374 063 20 2452 633 30
Oiher Incoma 15 A% A2, 171 BB BT 24 098 036 249
TOTAL INCOME 33,984 182 80 644,213, 870,97
LESS: OPERATING EXPENSES
TRAINING EXPENSES
Apprenticeship Allowances 16 47 BTG 26T a0 13,032 837.37
Traming Consumalies 17 47 16,421,145.82 14,994 482 85
Oither Traiming Expenses 18 A7 106,862,137 48 0,061 7840
Slall cost 19 48 100438, 716 26 177 466, 192.34
Stall cosl - Other Expansas 191 48 T B30 801.99 20,540 269.02
Transporiation and communication 20 49 25 54T B AD 36,245,413.70
Supplies and office Requisiles 21 41 89,434 654,05 9,653 An1,50
Equipmen! maintenance 22 A0 04 224 987 40 37,519,047 47
Framiges maintenance 23 50 93,503 538 56 G, 1458 409,71
GAB 733,884 16 G2Y 622 712,63
ADMINISTRATION AND FINANCE EXPENSES
Slalf Cost 19 a4 102 543 956 45 06,558 718,95
Staff Cost - Olher Expensos 101 a8 5,602 970 30 11,064 501,01
Transportalion & Communmcations 20 a9 21,284 /8567 19,516,761.27
Supplies & Office Requisiles 2 49 4,080,144 90 5,198,243 83
Equipment Maintenance 2 50 20198 075H L3 20,095 356,33
Pramises Mainlonance 4 50 50,348,069 76 36,722 220.62
Audit Feas R4 BER D0 313,474.00
Finance & Other Expensos 24 50 5,562 580,55 5,060 477 66
224 495,288,223 193 528,243,717
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES TE3, 226173 30 £21,060 956 40
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (20,244, 080.58) (FHE3T077 410
i i - INCOME
Revaluation Surplus / {Deficit)
Feareign Countries Subsidiary Co. Assols
Exchange Surplus ! (Delicit)
Gratuily Valuation Surplus /! { Deficit)
Fair Walue maasure Gaing | (Losses)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 19 [29.244,9@.59} (75 B37,07747)

Transfored Lo Malional Approntice &
Incustrial Training Fund
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NATIONAL APPRENTICE & INDUSTRIAL TRAINING AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31122012

2012 20
RS Hs,

Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Surplus/(Deficit) from Cparating Aclvilies (20,244 R0 58] (P55 0T A7)
Adjustments in respet! of Pravious years 33 608,027 40 266,146 64

M 32404880 (76 123,224.31)
Gralully pasd during he Yaar (000,778.99) (13,022 361.12)
Par Time Income {108,808, 4 15,804 060.0F)
Fart Timn & Central Fund Copilal Resure {2,084, 431 69)
Fart Tirme & Central Fusd Obligalory Requirement Resane {1042 215 04)
Ailjustments in reapect of previous years for PTG (50 608.62) G2, 2R8.50

ZOLOET 0592 (%8377, A67.00)
Hon Cash Movements
Lang culstanding crediors (4,234 364, 4)
IT Income Rasarvn 133,904, 159.00)
Dierprociintion 03,77 H1200 BOLGAS 5
Pro. for bad & doubtiul dabls on Staff Loans (08 254,70} (89,787 .53)
Fron tor biad & daubtiul dabls on Sundry Dabiors (437 BO1.05) 0,090,685
Undesr 1Oy prowision Tar Obsalets Stock (2,50} 164225
Provision for Gratuity 10, A6H, 367 93 2075051775
Add Heceivnd £ 018 BGE G
Diffared Incoma Incroasa/liacreasn (AZ TR AGD G LM BT G )
Increpse | Decrease in Siocks 1 566, 369,84 (B4, 381 0]
Increase [ Decrense in Receivables 4,060,842, 71 {1.B49,574.85)
Increase [ Decrease n Deposits, Propaymeants & Advances 20TRG00S0 (AT 457 506 %6G)
Increass  Decrease in Payables {27 164,640,234} 21, B048826.01
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities A 124,564 457.21  (71.860,017.79)
Cash Flow from Investing Activitios
Watar Cycle Revorue Reseie
Acouisdion of Fxed Assals (302 260.067.37) (336,454 6526.11)
Cacraass | ncraasa) in Capital Warks in Progross (040 B SR 30002 B2 44
Digposal Procends LR P ST
Mot Cash Flow from [nvesting Activities 1} (420,277 634 61) (208,365 12387
Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Capital Grant from Treasury HA1,000,000,00 355 500,000,060
Kot Cash Flow from Financing Activities ¥ 331,000,000,00 356 500, 000,00

Mt Increasesl| Decroases) in Cash & Cash Equivalents | ArB+C)

Cish & Cash Equivalenls ot beginning of he perod
Cosh & Cash Equivalents ot end of the period

36,206,622 60
B 106,304.02

(14,725,141.66)
104,631,535.68

122,303, 216 62

§7,106,304,02

Analysis of balance of cash & cash equivalents as shown in the Balance Shaot

Change inthe  Change in the
2 o Yoar 2012 Yoar 2011
Canh al bank & in hand 1,664,375 A1 41,005 485,06 (8,431,110.26) 340,095 97
Cash in-tranait 14,322,050.81 £ AB3, TN 06 JAGEA2G 0 (18092 349 60)
Inwestmants 19,406 790,20 8,547 18310 40,058,607 .10 2,908,111.97
122 383 216 62 He 106 304,02 A6 204G B2 B0 B G 5T1 A2

Irvsstments inchudes sludents refundabis deposits amounting 1o e 21,746 376,30

Al
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HATIONAL AFPRENTICES AND INDUSTRIAL THAINING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31122012

MNate - 01

Gengral Acoowntng Policies

1
Ih Matiooal Apprentices ard industest Traimng Sathority (hesein after relerred Lo s “Aatharity ) which is situated at Mo, 971,
Sri Jayewardenepurs Mawalba, Wellkada, Rajaginys was ocorporated by Terliary & Voomlional Educaton Act Mo, 20 of
1980

2 Bosls of Proparation

T Financial Statements of e ofganiz alion have b prapared I accordancn wilh genesrally acceplod A Eouning
principala and Sn Lanka Accounting Standands,

Thesse Fnancia! Statements presented in S Lanka Rupees have Deen prepaed on bisloneal cosl basis

3 Comparative Information

A1 The prassous yoar Rgures and phrasas have bean raarranged whoraver nocessary bo canfiem o his corrent year's

prasantation
4 Government Grants & Subsidias

4.1 Government Grants an which th organization degerds Toe s axpendiiun aro i sccounted on & receipls basis
Grants refabed o recurent ependiiune are beng prosonted os o coodilin tho Statement of Comprehens v eomo
account whirias tha grants raleasod to Capdal Expendibire are being credded deectly 1o the Notional Apprentices &
dlustrial Training Fuord

A2 Grant rolaled fo assots and Geant i tha torm of transfers of assels are recognized as deferrsd income in the Income
statement on a systomabe bass over the uselul e of the relaled assols,

5§ Assnts and tho bases of thelr valuation

5.1 Stocks

Stocks have generaly been valuod al the cost and provisan is e st 5% for obsolsts stocks of prinled materals,

6.2 Racolvablos
RECOMARTR ara state At i Amaunt expeciad (o be realzed and 10U provision s boen mode tor Wid and douttiul

desbts of staff wha are nob i the service of te aulbordy as ol 3112 2092, 6% prowesion bas boon mode gs bad and
debful detits @l other dublors sxcept slall in services

5.3 Property, Plant and Equiprment
R nltlon and Mo as o nt
Hems of Property, Pland and Equipment are siated al cost less scoumulsted deprecialion or impairmant oss
(b}, Cost

The cost o Progety, Plant and Equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly atifibulable cost ol bringing
Ihin asifirls 10 working conddan for s inlended use

Subseaguent expenddures ncurred for thee purpose of scauinng estending or mproving aasels of parmarsant nalure in
order o carry o incresse pedormance of e Sathodly have beon treatod as capital aependiunn

(&), Ivantery having shortan life
Invartany itams having shor lite nature and are matenal to capitale o are written off to Statemoent of Comprebensive

Incame Ancount However, for the purpose of contral e dem are oventonisd and physical control s exercised,

(dl), Depreciation
Dresprrescientioan i el ulated o o straight e basis cyar i asolid ife of e aasata

Rate of depreciation

Laase Pkt Lansd Crver he penod of lease
Hinldings 5%
Machinery & Cgulpmoenl 10%
Furmiturs & ftings & Office Equipmants 1%
Campuaer & Acoesandies 205
Litarary Boks 105,
Rotar Wehiclos 25%



54 Cash & Cash Equivalont
Cash & Cash equivalents are defined as cash in hand, demand deposils al bank, shor lerm highly liqusicd investments
raadiy convertibda o know amounts of cash,

For tho purpose of cash Flow Stalement, cash (n hand and at Bank, sharl term investments, cash in Wansit am i Bilesi)
as cash and cash oguivalen!.

fi lit wiBians

Cibiligations payabile on demand or wilhin one year of the balance sheet date are treated as curment labilties 0 he balance
sheed, Liabiliios payable aflar ane yoar from (he balance shest dists am eatsd as non-curent abiitios in e balanoe
ahol

6.1 Gratuity Provision

Frovigion hos bran made for the gratuity payable from i inflal yoar of servioes to al employeas . However the Gratuity
At 12 af 1983 and SLAS 16, the lability to an employes anses on completion of five years of continuesd senioes,

6,2 ont n plans
Iations for contribitions 1o 8 defined confribution plons are recogoized as an sxpenss i Be income stlemont as

incurrisd. Thi Authorlty conlributes @ sum nol ess than 1% and 3% of the gross emoluments of smployees 1o
Emphoyees' Provident Fund (EPF) and to the Employess’ Trost Fund (ETF) e e livaly

7 Statement of Comprehensive Income Accounts

Grants received from the Government, Local & Foreign Al reacived Wwards rouront expendiure and the
migcelnecs income of he Authority are credied to tha Statement of Comprehensive Income Azcount, The amaounts
spant on major fepairs and improverments for capial Assels oul of oapial grant bl not capitalized were charged o
Statement of Comprahensive ntome A and an egual imount was transfered from grant recalvad ledger A

The Surplus/ (Daficit) o Innome over Expenditure has baen aeivid at after making provisions Tor ail known labilities
A Exponditure incurred in operating the Authaeity and malnaining s caplal sssels ina state of afficiency has been
charged 1o rvenu,

Expanditura incurred in Trning, Adminisistion and Finance acivies are apponioned ns follows.,
Training Exprngos 65%
Administration and Finanee Expansos 5%

8 Capltal commitmants and contingent llabilities

Al material capital commitments and conlingenl lablidos are considerad and necassary adjistments or disclosures wme
made in the financial statements,

L} {

The matanalty of events ocourtng afler the balance sheet date has Been considered and appropiate adjestmoents,
whaorever necessary, have been mesde In (he accounts,

10 Mo provision is made for Apprentice Allowance arrears of Re. 41000 000,00 for e Year 2012

According o the Pubiic Finance kntter PE/STBOMZ007 dated 2707 2007 & lack of proviglon, Revaluation of Propery Plant
& Equipment was ot made

12 A per the instruction: ghien by COPE, long oulstanding balances of Greditors were transferrsd to lncome with the approval
ol thix board af managemant,

13 Differed Incame hereass’ Docroase & shown as Mon Cash Movements in e Slaterment af Cash Flaws.

14 Appeoprintions have been madn fram the Central Fund and Par time Accounts with the approval of the board of
ranagerment as follows

Conaolidated Fund 5%,
Coapital Regurement Fund B0y
Cibligatory Reguiremant Fund Bl



HATIONAL APPRENTICE & INDUSTRIAL TRAINING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.12,2012

Note | Sch. No. 012 2011

Properly, Plant sl Eguiprment 2 A B 610,900 22 GO5 S92 BEa 17
Capital Work in Frogross 1 G, 203,088.57 26,242,870.01
Slocks 4 B 0,700,039 85 11,365 400 69
Rocaivablos 5 73,230,6821.39 P31 464 10
Depogits, Propayments & Advancos i TE LT 41725 49 406,018 15
Inwesiments 7 T8 A0, 190,20 38,547 18310
Cash in Transits i 11,322,050.81 A6, 725,00
Cash & Bank Balancos ] BRI PR A1 0605 ARG A6
Payablos 10 3,841,300 26 121,105 940 60
MAITA Fural 11 315,140,760.19 304,919 126.03
Provylsion for Giratuity 12 140,170,685 57 137,313,084, 63
Diftered Incema 13 GED, 310,927 .38 388,002 267 .90
Oither Aid - Recurrent 14 11,374,063.20 2,452,533.30
Other Incomie 1% 42,171, 605497 30,008,008, 24
Appranticeship Allowancos 16 B8 26730 H3 2 Bar 4y
Training Consumatilas 17 16,421, 145,62 14,904,082 85
Cthar Training Expanses 14 100G, 832 137 48 B0V061 A7 R 49

Statt Cost 19
Training Expensas 100 AH, PG 26 TFF A6, 10 4
Admin & Finanoo Exponses 102,540, 066,45 45,558, 710.95
202,082,732.70 27302491129

Stail Cosl - Oher Exprenses

Training Expontos 181 18,638,601 .99 20,549, 269,02
Admin & Finance Expanses 9,862,6870,30 11,064,991.01
28,582 172 29 A1 614 260 03

Transporation & Communication n
Training Expenaas A 54T S 40 A6 245 415 79
Admin & Finance Expenses 21,204 805 6/ 19516, 76T 27
60,842, 559.07 66,762, 175.05

Supplies & Office Requisibes 2
Training Expenses 9,434,564 .05 0,653 881 .50
Admin & Finance Expenses 5.080,144.08 5,198,243.93
14,614 G003 14 B2 126 62

Equipment Maintenanons ¥
Training Exprnses G, 234 007 40 AL 0047 4¢
Admin & Finnnce Exponmas 26,168,075.53 20,0845, 356,33
B3,423,072.93 97.415,303.080

Premisas Maintenance 23
Training Expanses 93,603,639.56 G, 198,400 71
Admin & Finance Exponses 50,348,059.76 36,722 22062
Tabd BN g 42 104 9320 630 373
Finance & Other Exponsos 24 h 062 LB B 6,058 47 G
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STATEMENT OF FINANCLAL POSITION A% AT 21,12.2012

042

won

CAPITAL EMPLOYED

Predil AF

Capinl Hoquiramant Fund
Corligatary Heguaamin) Fund
Total

REFRESENTED DY

CURRENT ASSETS

Flaad Deposil - PR Nugegoda
Fizisi Deposil - ROB

Fixied Chuposil - Sanasa

Finnd Diapast - #8 Hugegoda
Chabioes - HO& P OO - PURTE
Chaloen - AT 1 PLIPTC

Dttt = IET - PLETE

Dottars - AE T 1 - PUPTE

[ubilors - MAITA - H O

Dabilors - Prabing Unil

Dabiors - NAITA Medioal Inauranie
el manel {Minastry of Palicy Dav. & Imp. |
Savirga Account 417

Fises Dapisil insurast Recevabln
Cash

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Creshitars « AT {Sala ol wood ilems |
Conaalidated Fund PUPTE

Cradile - NAITA

Craditey - WO - WUSENGTZ Cash Balpnce
Eank Chargas Payalia

NET CURRENT ASSETS

23,701,207 4D

442 070,89
P48 44
20,305,510 74

L L JET B
2,000,000 00 248047170
140,972 08 A2, 62009

000, 000.00
16 g 6F 1673,3087 26
1,910 16D 03 24T B5E.O0
207, 38307 AR
1, A 1864 173505 0%
170647 02 FBERT .02
04D 280, 3 26040327
PR e 2368 970 1y
FL L] 26, 700.00
2,377 354,07 20,304

I71,128.25
A1 1.."'F‘. ?1 24 1k4, 904, 24 7.4410,002.37
122710

ATE AT &R
G2.450 81 B 502 0
17302
520,304 50 LR T

T 066A1 M
T s——

ATATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDLD 3142 2042

23,464 600 51

X
T ea—

M AE 28

G01,072.74
23,404, 600,51
[ —

Description e 201
INGOME ¢
A% Prelit Cantritutian fram Privting Ut 10,507 04 LAFR AT
A% Prafi Contribution from BLETC A0 & PO B16,669,33 1673, 387T )
A% Prafit Contrbulion lrom PLPTE - ATI W6 AT0.04 1,022,070 87
A% Frolil Contiludion frem PUPTE - IET fill A58 08 113,245 0%
A0% Prolil Canteibution fram PUPTE - AETH A2, M45.47 1 340872 A0
S Avcaunt Inbaresl ThA 271,06 2,043,019.67 fre G 23 EREIR VR
EXPENDITURE
arik Chiargas L4000 15,171,456
Seall Servon 1,574, 50000 1,680,340 00 1547145
Prodet/| Loss) far Lhe yoar 1,362 670 87 5316, 74612
Appropriation to HAITA
PrafitiLoss) aller apgopriation V162 BTO 6T 5,300, Ta0.12
% of prefit iransfer to Consoadmid Furg 476537 B
Het Praft allar apgropaation o Consafidated Fund BS, 741 T
01 % of Approgdiation for Cagtal Raguimemanl A4 EFOAER
Hat Profil after agpiognatan of Cagilal Risguinmerd ad2 WD B
A0 5 of Agprapniatan foe Obsgalon Requiamisns it Y]
Surprhas J{0eCi) b i yiar 221 AN A
Palwnica BF at thi Bagiveing of the year 23484 B0 51 10,147 854 39
Acdjustmant i rospect ol privaouy yeprs 1617144

8

20,700,207 40
s s s ———

73,464,600 51
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The Chairman

National Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority

Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements of the National Apprentice and
Industrial Training Authority for the year ended 31 December 2012 in terms of Section

14(2)(¢) of the Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971,

s

I'he audit of financial statements of the National Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority for the
year ended 31 December 2012 comprising the statement of financial position as at 31 December
2012 and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and  cash flow
statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information was carried out under my direction in pursuance of provisions in Article
154(1) of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of 8Sri Lanka read in conjunction
with Section [3(1) of the Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971 and Section 10(d)2) of the National
Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority (Amendment) Act No.50 of 1999, My comments and
observations which I consider should be published with the Annual Report of the Authority in terms
of Section 14(2)(c) of the Finance Act, appear in this report, A detailed Report in terms of Section

13{7)(a) of the Finance Act was Turnished to the Chairman of the Authority on 31 December 201 3.

1:2  Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statemnents in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standard and for such internal control as
the management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that

are free from material misstatements whether due to fraud or error,

wam 10071, mnelgh ol Sebediieln, @ pemol, - We, WWTL Gurdigre ol okagpeees, Benima o No 00T, Patdewn laad, Ieiesramulis, Sei Lamke
Eﬁ{ A0 - 2ZHRTH-3 +04.11-2RATI23 ouggovaline,lk ww i mudlitorgeneral gov. |k
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1.3

Auditor's Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
my audit. | conducted my audit in accordance with  Sri Lanka Auditing
Standards.  Those Standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free from material misstatements,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatements of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the Authority for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal
control of the Authority. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of financial
staternents. Sub - sections (3) and (4) of Section 13 of the Finance Act, No. 38 of
1971 give discretionary power to the Auditor General to determine the scope and

the extent of the audit,

I believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for my qualified audit opinion.

Basis for Qualified Audit Opinion

T T T L T raee———————— ST L T P T

My opinion s qualified based on the matters described in paragraph 2.2 of this

report,

sl
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2.2.1

Financial statements

Qualified Opinion

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in paragraph 2:2 of
this report, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the National Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority as at 31
December 2012 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in

accordance with S Lanka Accounting Standard.

Comments on Financial Statements.

Accounting deficiencies,

B L L L L L L L L L T L LT e —————

Following accounting deficiencies were observed.

{a) The rental income amounting to Rs. 240,000 receivable from a private company

had nat been brought to the secounts.

{b) Electricity charges pertaining to communication towers due from the relevant

companies had not been computed and recovered,

() A sum of Rs.2,158962 that should have been shown as fixed assets had been

shown as maintenance expenditure,

(d) A sum of Rs. 2,210,404 remitted to the regional offices by the head office had not
been credited to the accounts and the said amount had not been shown as cash in

transit.

(e) A sum of Rs. 176,352 receivable as rental of the official quarters had not

been recovered or brought to the accounts as cash receivable
() A sum of Rs.595,997 paid in respect of 04 employees who had been

released to the other institutions on the basis of salary reimbursement had

not been reimbursed and shown in the accounts,

5
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Un reconciled accounts.

Following observations are made,

(a)

(b)

A difference amounting to Rs 596,122 was observed between the amounts
indicated in the financial statements presented to audit and the supportive

documents applicable thereto.

A difference amounting to Rs. 1,466,033 was observed between the
balances of two accounts indicated in the trial balance and the balances

shown in the financial statements.

Accounts receivable and payable

Following observations are made.

(a)

(b)

(¢)

There were 94 debtors balances to the value of Rs.73,440,110 at the end of
the wear under review and out of which 59 balances valued at
Rs. 38,998,039 were internal debtors and 35 balances amounting to
Rs.34,445 971 were external debtors. The Authority had not taken action

to obtain confirmation of balances from the debtors,

Within the balance of Rs. 5,038,743 older than 5 years and recoverable
from 3lexternal debtors there was a balance of Rs.1,180,181 recoverable
from 13 government institutions and a balance of Rs, 1,036,283 older than
3 years recoverable from 10 institutions. Further, action had not heen

taken to recover the balance of s.2,443,451 due from 07 internal debtors,

Action had not been taken to recover the loan balance of Rs. 108,999
recoverable from the employees who had vacated their posts, even by the

end of the year under review.
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(d) Action had not been taken to settle the advance balance of Rs. 795,162
which had been granted to the external parties by the Authority during

1995 to 2011, even by the month of December 2012,

(e) Within the balance of Rs.93,944,300 payable in the year under review
there was a sum of Rs.4,074,000 payable to Sri Lanka Excise since year

2010,

(N The loan amounting to Rs 830,917 recoverable from 23 employees who
had resigned the service had not been recovered.
Lack of evidence for audit

The evidence indicated against the following items shown in the financial
staterments had not been submitted for audit.

Particulars Value Lyidence not made avilable
Hs.

i Stock 9,799,040 Report of the Board of survey,
detailed schedule

il Land 46,939,652 Title deeds in support of the
ownership of three lands

il Advances 14,492,718  Confirmation of balance

v Sundry debtors 34,445971  Confirmation of balance

v Creditors 28,908,661  Confirmation of balance

vi  Bank balance 2,237,265  Bank reconciliation statements

relating to 07 bank accounts

vii Cancelled cheques 4,234,354 Detailed schedule
viii Cash received from a 724,574 Agreement entered into with the
Private [nstitute institute

il



2.2.5  Non-compliance with laws, rules, regulations and management decisions

Following observations are made

Reference to laws, rules and

regulations etc.

{(a) Section 11 of the Finance

Act. No. 3R of 1971

(b) Establishments code
(1.) Section 6.1 of the

paragraph VIII

(ii.) Section 2.2 of the

chapter IX

(c) Section 5 (1) of the
Payment of Gratuity
Act.No. 12 of 1981,

Non_compliance

In case of financial investments i1s made in a corporation
approval of the Ministry of Finance should be obtained.
Mevertheless, the Authority had not taken action
accordingly in an  investment amounting to
Rs.79,406,970,

Even though the overtime allowance due to be paid for
an hour should be computed as 1/8 of a day's pay and a
day’s pay should be computed as 1/30 of the monthly
consolidated salary, the Authority had paid overtime
allowance by computing a day’s pay at a rate of 1/20 of

the monthly salary,

Even though 10 per cent of the allowances received for
the duties performed outside the official hours should he
credited to the Consolidaled Fund, it has not been so
done in respect of lecturer fees of part time courses and

other allowances,

Even though the gratuity of a retired employee should be
paid within 30 days from the date of termination of the
service of the employee concerned, 13 instances of

delays for the payments were observed.
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(d) Extraordinary gazette
notification No.1530/3
dated 01 January 2008,

(e) Finaneial regulations of

the _Republic of Sri Lanka
(i) No. 104

(i) No.138

(i1i.) No. 210, (1)

{iv.) No.241 (1)

{v.) No., 264 (1)

Stamp duty of Rs.25 should be recovered on payments
exceeding Rs.25,000 and remitted to the Commissioner
General of Inland Revenue. Nevertheless, action had not
been taken accordingly in respect of payments to the

value of Rs 899 863 during 9 instances.

The reports of losses and damages on vehicle accidents
caused during the year under review had not been

furmished to the Auditor General,

Even though the officer certifying the payments should
certity the each voucher, the payments amounting to

Rs.3,703,190 had been made without such certification,

Even though payments should be made so as to receive
the discount benefits, action had not been taken
accordingly in making payments for the water bills and

assessment tax of the Authority,

Even though payments should be made upon entire
vouchers being certified by the Certifying Officer,
instances of not adopting the said procedure were

observed.

Even though a receipt in support of each and every
payment should be obtained from the payee the receipts
relating to the payments valued at Rs.5,368,133 made in

10 instances had not been furnished,

(5]



(vi.) No.395 (a), (¢)

(vii.) No.396

(viii.) No.702 (3)

(ix.) No.1646

The bank reconciliation statements should be prepared
and furnished to the Auditor General before 15th of the
following month. Nevertheless, bank reconciliation
statements had been furnished with delays and the bank
reconciliations  statements  pertaining to 08 bank

accounts had not been presented.

Action had not been taken in terms of Financial
Regulations on 100 outstanding cheques totalled 1o a

sum of Is.2,693,338 pertaining to 13 bank accounts.

Copies of the agreements executed during the year under

review had not been furnished to the Auditor General.

Even though daily running charts and  monthly
summaries relating to vehicles should be submitted to
the Auditor General before 15th of the following month,
daily running charts and monthly summaries relating to
10 vehicles for the year under review had not been

furnished.

(I} Public Administration Circular

Sections 1.1.6(v) and 1.3.1 (1)

of Circular No 22/99 dated 08
Oetober 19949

assigned to officers entitled to transport facilities in groups

i

Instances were observed that vehicles had been individually



(%)

ih)

(i)

()

Ministry of Finance Circular
Section 3. 1(ii) of Ministry of
Finance Circular No
A46PEI 2 dated 10 September
2000

Ministry Circulars

Section 1.1.1 of Circular No
TVET/H/2004/1 dated 28
January 2004

Cirgular No NPA/R of National
Procurement Agency
Sections 3.2.2 and 3.4.2

Section 7 of Department of
Public Enterprises Circular No
50 dated 28 July 2008,

Approval should have been oblained from the Secretary to
the Ministry for providing the officers with telephone
facilities with [DD though, this requirement had been

unheeded

Courses had been conducted for less than the minimum No
of apprentices without obtaining the prior approval of the

Ministry,

Though competition should be encouraged in inviting for
quotations for Public works and services | this requirement
was unheeded in 25 instances when supplies and services,

valued at Rs, 2,594 879 were obtained.

Though it should be within 50 Kilometers for a return
Journey when group transport facilities are provided, there
were instances in which transport  facilities had  been

provided for a distance more than that,

i
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1.1

3.2

Financial Review

Financial Resul

As per the financial statements presented, the operations of the Authority for the
vear ended in 31 December 2012 resulted in a deficit of Rs. 29,244 981, in
contrast with a deficit of Rs, 75837,077 for the previous year indicating a
decrease of Rs. 46,592,096 in the deficit for the year under review. The growth of
the financial result had been contributed by the increase in Government grants ,

miscellancous and delerred income,

Legal Actions against the Institute,
An employee had filed a case against the institute and two cases had been (iled by

external institutes and persons whereas, another case had been filed by the

Authority.

Operations Review
Performance,

Following observations are mad.

(a) A description on students enrolled , completed the courses within the year
and following the courses at the end of the year at District offices of the
Authority and national training institutes in Katubedda, Orugodawatta, and

Katunayake , in contrast with the previous year , is as follows.

Category 2012 2011
No of students at the beginning of the year 29609  2R558
No of students enrolled during the year 32,613 32479

No of students who completed the courses during the year 27,522 26,036
No of students following the courses at the end of the year 27,463 29,609

(b.} A performance report on the financial and physical performance of the

Authority had not been prepared.

05



(c.)

Though it was targeted to enroll 31,300 apprentices during the year under
review, only 32,613 had been enrolled but, the actual No of apprentices
was 23,763 owing to vacating of courses. The Authority had been able o

achieve 76 per cent of its target though, the decrease in the enrollments at

the district level was in the range of 1.3 to 39.9 per cent,

(d.}  The targeted No ol apprentices had not been enrolled in 7 disiricts,

(e.)  Though it was targeted to enroll 450 apprentices for the Institute of

En ring Technology , Katunayake, the No of enrollments were 299

which was a 33.6 per cent decrease in the targeted No of enrollments,

(f)  Details on the actual position and programs targeted to be conducted in

each division are as follows,

Professional Guidance Division

guidance tools

school leavers

sehool children

Professional Research Division
Programs for training the trainers

Program Target  Actual Progress Difference
Achieved Increase/Decrease

Programs  to develop  career (6 - {06)
Professional pumdance programs tor 140 126 (14)
Professional guidance programs for 125 9] (34)
30 27 )]

Trainees of professional craft level 5,000 3,982 (1018)

20,000 18,783 (1217

Other trainees

(g.)  Though 15 ISO/QMS programs had been scheduled to be conducted

during the year under review, only one program had been conducted.
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4.2

(h.)

A description on the numbers of apprentices enrolled during the year

under review and the previous 5 years and those who vacated the courses,

is as follows.

Year No No Left the No of Those Who Left as a
Enrolled Courses Percentage of Enrollment

2012 32,613 8,850 27.14

2011 32,479 5,391 16.60

2010 27,7180 0,668 3480

2009 25,721 6,238 20.98

2008 23,617 4,682 19.82

2007 16,281 4,653 2857

Management Inefficiencies

Following observations are made.

(a.)

(b))

Board of Survey

I

Mecessary action had not been taken even by September 2013 on
recommendations of the Board of Survey and 461 items in excess and
a shortage of 1811 items identified in the year under review together
with 1,522 items in excess and a shortage of 1,509 items identified in

the Board of Survey conducted in the previous year.

Board of Surveys had not been conducted at a division in Head Office

and 3 divisions of 3 centers

Approval had not been obtained from the Board of Directors for 11

fixed deposits.
Approval had been oblained for 4 fixed deposits from the Board of

Directors though, a possible income of Rs. 267,666 had been deprived

as the investments had been delayed for more than a month.
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4.3

4.4

(c.)

(e)

A motor vehicle obtained by paying Customs charges amounting to
?s.1,134,000 in February 2010, had not been utilized even by September
2013 and had been parked at the Automobile Engineering Training

Institute , Orugodawatta with parts disassembled.

Despite the adequate No of vehicles at the head office of the Authority, an

amount of Rs.138,482 had been paid for vehicles obtained on rent,

An amount of Rs.7,367,731 that should have been recovered over the
breach of agreements due to failure of employees to return who went
abroad on scholarships, had not been recovered without mentioning in the

accounts as well,

Transactions of Contentious Nature

Following observations are made.

(a.)

(b.)

Even though 08 training centers had been constructed at the lands owned
by external parties at the expense of Rs.61,634,667, action had not been
taken by the Authority to take over those lands even by 2014.01.31

Payments had been made in such a way that service charges for the

television channels had been deemed (o be official telephone bills,

Idle and Underutilized Assets

Following observations are made.

(a.)

(b)

There were 08 bank current accounts with balances over Rs.8 million and
the total of the balances at the end of the year amounted to Rs. 25,945 283
It was also observed in audit that monthly balances in some of the

accounts ranging from Rs. 1.3 million to 64 million had remained idle.

Five vehicles had remained idle in the year under review whereas, another

4 vehicles remained underutilized.
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() The District center in Polonnaruwa had not conducted courses owing to
lack of students. Hence, the equipment related to those courses remained
4.5 Contract Administration

Following observations are made.

(a.)

iii,

Vi,

Following matters were observed over the construction of three storey

hostel building for the Apprentice Training Institute in Moratuwa.

An agreement had been reached for this contract valued at
Rs.31,289.371 to be completed on 30 June 2012, The Authority
had entered into another accord with a consultancy firm at an
amount of Rs.2,289,000 for the inspection of architecture, structure
and the construction; however, the construction process had »
been completed even by August 2013,

Though the consultancy firm should have furnished monthly
progress reports and issued necessary instructions to the contractor
as per the agreement, this requirement had been unheeded.

It was observed in audit that the construction had been delayed
due to failure in assigning sufficient number of laborers and
machinery, unavailability of qualified staff' and delays in obtaining
approval for material samples.

The service period of the consultancy firm had to be extended
owing to delay in contract and an amount of Rs.500,000 had been
agreed to be paid.

Sanction of the Urban Development Authority had not been
obtained before the construction of the building began.
Rs.2,114,645 worth of surety bond for the building had been
expired on 19 June 2013 though, the validity period had not been

further extended,

4



4.6

4.7

(h) The following matters were observed in relation to construction of the
three storied student hostel at Institute of Engineering Technology
Katunavake.

i. A contract agreement valued at Rs.33 368,508 had been entered
into for this construction, whereas assistance of consultancy firm
had been obtained on the basis of payment of Re,2,289,000, Even
though decisions had been taken to complete the same construction
work at June 2012, it had not been completed even as at August
2013,

ii. Though the consultancy firm should have furnished monthly
progress reports and issued necessary instructions to the contractor

as per the agreement, this requirement had been unheeded,

iit. Additional payments had to be made for advisory services due to

delay of construction work.

Resources of uthority Given_to Other Government Institutions

Having being released by the Authority, seven employees had been deployed in
other institutes as at the end of the year under review contrary to the Provisions
of the Public Enterprises Circular No.PED/12 dated 02 June 2003. An expenditure
amounting to Rs. 1,033,029 in the year under review and Rs.5,694,712 in
previous years had been incurred by the Authority as salaries and allowances of

the employees who were released from the service.

Staff Administration
Details of the approved cadre and actual cadre in the year under review are given

below as compared with preceding year,

it



2012 2011

Description Approved  Actual  Deficit  Approved  Actual  Deficit
Executive Grade 192 111 81 |38 B8 50
Management Assistants 664 491 173 515 466 49
and parallel services

Junior 136 118 18 110 97 13

992 720 272 763 651 112

The following matters were observed in relation to that,

(a) In addition to the approved cadre, 58 employees had been recruited on
casual, temporary and contract basis without getting approval from the
Ministry or Department of Management Services and a sum of
Rs.7,997,525 had been paid to them as salaries and allowances in the year
under review,

(b)  Employees attached to the training centres had continuously deployed in
the same centre and action had not been taken to transfer them.

{c) Defects such as failure to call applications when granting of promotions in
the Authority, failure to conduct interviews, calling of applicants who did
not have qualifications stated in the scheme of recruitment, granting of
appointments since the appointed date of acting duties, failure to appoint
members of the relevant Ministry and Ministry of Finance for the board of
interview and appointing only the officers of the institute for board of
interview were observed,

(d) An officer who had been recruited for a period of one year on secondment
basis had been appointed for the permanent post of the Director
Administration and Human Resources before completion of the duration,
It was observed in audit that applications had not been called for
recruitment of the same post and the recruitment had been made contrary
to the Provisions of the Establishments Code and  he had been placed on

the maximum of the salary scale entitled to the post.
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5. Accountability and Good Governance
5.1 Presentation of Financial Statements

Even though according to the Public Finance Circular No.PF/PE/21 dated 24 May

2002, Financial Statements should be presented to audit within 60 days of the end
of the financial year | financial statement of the institute in the year under review
and the preceding year had been presented to audit on 15 July 2013 and 06 June

2012 respectively,

5.2 Budgetary Control
Significant variances were observed between the revised budgeted expenditure
and the actual expenditure, thus indicating that the Budget had not been made use

of as an effective instrument of management control.

6. Systems and Controls
Weaknesses i systems and controls observed in audit were brought to the

attention of the Authority from time to time, Special attention is needed in respect

of the following areas of controls,

(a) Fixed Assets

(b) Cash and Bank Accounts

(c) Accounting

(d) Vehicle Utilization

(e) Apprentices and Training Activities

(N Staff Management

(i) Welfare Funds

(h) Income and Expenditure

(i) Stores Control

() Control Of Publicity and Telephone Charges

H.A 8 Samaraweera
Auditor General
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Replies to the Report of the Auditor General as per the Section 14(2)(1) of Monetary Act
No. 38 of 1971 with Regard to the Financial Statement s of the National Apprentice and
Industrial Training Autharity for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

2. Financial 5tatement,
2.2.2. Accounting Deficiencies

{a) Apreed with audit observations. Action would be taken to account accrued basis in the
future under audit direction though accounted on financial basis.

(B} The Finance Divisian 1s infarmed to make necessary adjustments in accounts by caloulating
electricity charges received from telecom companies,

ic] As per the audit directions, capitalizable value out of this value has been adjusted in
preparing final accounts for the year 2013.

(d) Audit observations are not agreed with.

Date Cheque No. Amount | Details

28122012 las®y 78312.06 | Moneys are
reimbursed  not a5

et prepayment  but  on
T | 34328 5089381 basis of petty cash.
Accardingly, money in
Vavuniya transit are nat

recorded.
38122012 R ETITET 177518251 As these two cheques
i et - i | had been accounted as

343196 297,015.32

receipt dated
28.12.20,12 under No,
2256, 1t in nat required
to vouch as money in
transit,

(E) Agreed with audit observation. Action has taken to recover money with effect from 01.01,2014,

(FlApread with audit observation, The salary and allowances of officer released to the Presidential
Secretariat hod not accounted as under paying basis of the Authority. However, his salaries and
allowances are heing reimbursed to the Authority wee t January 2014 an requast made on directive
of the audit. Except the salary and allowances of officers serving on contact basis released 1o the
Ministey of Youth Affairs and Skills Development, allowances of other olficers are being reimbursed,
As afficers deployed Tor service on contract basis had been tempaorarily released for reguirements of
the Ministry and to the line ministry, no provision has been made,
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2.2.3. Accounts Receivable and Payable,

(A) Rs, 25913526/- out of Rs, 34445971/ outbound debtor balance had not been cleared by

251172013, Addresses of old creditors could not be found and the balance confirmation

letters have been sent to all debtors whose addresses could be traced,

(B} B4% af the internal debtors had been cleared by 25/11/201 %,

(D) Advances amounting to Rs. 795162/ paid 1o an external party during 199% up ta 2011

period could be reduced up to 564139.51 in the 2013 final account. It has been reduced up
to Rs, 471864/~ by May 2014, Accordingly, clearance needed is being progressed.

2.2.4, Lack of Evidence for Audit

Wi,

VI

Board of Survey report had been prepared by conducting the annual Board of Survey

Deeds and documents related to all lands acquired ownership are with the Legal
division, Actions are heing taken in respect of few lands ot which ownership to be
cleared,

All attempts are being taken get balance confirmations as far as possible from parities
concerned by sending letters and reminders

Actian has been taken get the balance confirmations as far as possible from parities
concerned by sending letters and reminders,

Action has been taken get the balance confirmanons as far as possible fram parities
concerned by sending letters and reminders,

Bank statements are recelived to the provincial offices concerned, Bank reconciliation
statements prepared based on them are prepare by those offices and send a copy Lo Lthe
head office. All bank reconciliation statements are ready to submit for audit at any time,

The policy of the Authority before canceling cheques is to get approval by Board paper,
Preparation  of detailed  schedules for submitting the  Board  paper had - been
accomplished

2.2.5 Non compliances with laws, rules, regulations and Managemaent

tal Accepted, Shart term fund recelved to the Authority had been shart termly invested withoul

crediting In current accounts, However, noted Tor taking action to get flat approval,

(b) (i)

Apread with Audit ohservations, Overtime had been paid on the one and half hour per one

haur Basis which had been followed continuously,

(1) 10% had nat claimed as allowances for duties performed after office haurs had been considered

in calculating the PAYE tax.
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(C)

(D)

(E)

(f)

(6)

{h)

()

Action is taken to pay gratuity within ane month time for all officers entitled to gratuity who
leave service, However, there are instances of delays in settling moneys to some officers
who leaves without prior notice from whom money to be recovered to Authority and legal
constraints etc.

Action has bean taken to collect stamp duty as directed by letter of Director (Finance) dated
24/09/2012 on charging stamp duties and get signatories on stamps valued Rs, 25/ for each
payment over Rs, 25000/-,

(i) Agreed with audit ohservations, Noted for sending those roports to the Auditor General,

(I} Agreed with, Steps have been taken to amend voucher set up by creating a place for
approval as such cage was not availlable in paying vouchers for signature,

() Presence of such instances is accepted. The officers concerned have been educated to
pet discounts for all water and Assessmont bills in the futuro,

(VI Agreed with audit observations. The officers concerned have been educated on
attaching undersigned receipts confirming proof of all payments,

(VI] Agreed with audit observations. The officers cancerned have been educated for
preparing bank reconciliation statements without any delay.

(VII) Agreed with. Action has been to deal with expired cheques as per F.R. No. 396 since
yoear 2013,

(VI Agreed with. The officers concerned have been educated to send copies of signed
agreements to the Auditor General,

{IX) Agreed with. This delay had been caused by not submitting running charts for four
reserved Vehicles and submitting running charts aof vehicles in district offices,

Separate vehicles have been allocated o supervisors on official duties with ministerial
approval.

Call charges of officers who got overseas telephone facilities had been recovered from their
salary.

Agreed with. The Divisions concerned have been educated to gel prior approval of the
Ministry for conducting courses for apprentices less than the approved number,

Agreed with, The procurement guidelines have been followed at every possible instances
and failing to do so had been covered by powers and approvals of the Chairman.

Agreed with, The officers concerned had been directed to act within the limit,
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1. Financial Review
1.1, Financial Results

Reporting about progress of allocations made for the Authority under various Heads by the reasury
are given under the Financial basis. Accordingly, deduction expenditure for institutional cost under
the financial basis had been forecast followed by the offering government grants. However, as
accounts to be made at final account preparation on accumulated basis, adjustments notes such as
allocation for gratuity, depreciation allocations and accumulated expenditure adjustments on
necessity tor adjusting income and expenditure are being taken into considerations far preparing
final accounts, The deficiency in final accounts caused in every year in crediting into preparing profit
and loss accounts by considering heads of final accounts which are not considered at preparing
torecasts. However, profitability cannot be registered except lowering tendency an increasing items
such as sundry income and varied income,

4, Operation Review
4.1. Performance

{a]  The number of students recruited in the year by District offices of the Authority Lo the
Katubedda, Orugodawatta and Katunayaka training centers are varied by comparing number of the
recruited and the completed. This is due to the training period of the apprentices expands from 06
months to 04 years. Accordingly, this amount represents the number of apprentices recruited in the
year under review and preceding years from one to three. As well, at the end of the year the number
of trainees embodies with those recruited in previous years of 1,2 and 3

by Agreed with audit observations, Noted for correction in the future,

C) Agreed with audit observabions, The main methodology adopted by Authority is Apprentice
training and for this industrial workshops are used. Depending upon the number of trained
vacancies, productivity of those workshops might alter its number of recruitment. On prachical
reasons, the number of apprentices so recruited would not go for training in full due to following
FEASONS

. Seeking courses by schaol leavers who sat for examinations until their results are out and leaving
training for higher education ance results are released.

ii. Leaving training due to finding permanent employments

lii. Shortage of inspectors too had been causative for drop in recruitment at district level in year
2012

4.2, Management Inefficiencies

(d} Hiring vehicles has to be sought for urgent official duties when sufficient vehicles are not found

at district level,



4.3, Transaction of Contentious Nature

(a) Action are on to acquire land that had not acquired to government out of these lands to the
Authority, Attending only the repairs to these buildings in which training centers of Authority are
run, without paying rental seem to be more profitable,

(k) Payment is made as the telephone bill of this officer had been within his limit, The Management
has been educated on action Lo be taken concerning expenditure of this nature under audit direction
in the future,

4.4, Idle and underutilized Assets,

{a) As the repairing of age-old vehicles would net be profitable economically, it is instructed to
auction them out, Alter repairing vehicles, only vehicles not suitable for long distances had been
deployed

Far the use of head office,

(b] Those equipment have been reserved Lo start a course b another locaton in the year 2014
4.5 Contract Administration

(a) Inrespect of constructing three-storeyed hostel building for the Moratuwa Training Institute,

I Agreed with, After warning the company over delay, the company in return had informed the
Autharity over difficulty. However, that contract had been aver by now.

Ii. The Contractor has been instructed and collected with monthly reports. The facilities for that
purpose have to be supplied by the Contractor himself, The Contractor had been severely advised on
this account.

i, Only supervision charge for 06 months has been paid,

iv. The legal implementations have been done for constructing buildings.

(bl

| after warning the company over delay, the company in return had informed the Authority over
difficulty. However, that contract had been over by now,

it The Contractor has been instructed and collected with monthly reports,

4.6 Resources of the Authority Given to other Government Institutions

[a) Agreed with. Salaries and other allowances for three persons are reimbursed. Salaries and other
allowances for three employees attached ta the Ministry and another attached to President's staff
arvevt re-imbursed, Many letters in this regard have been sent for re-imbursing but still they are
not respanded with,
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4.7 Staff Administration

() Employees have been recruited on casual, temporary and contract basis only subjective to the
approved cadre positions, Those qualified requirements of the SOR, had been recruited to
permanent and the employees on casual, temporary and contract basis at the time were pramoted
to Management Assistant category. They had been recruited to permanent position,

{b) The Instructar concerned is transferred only at the time of changing course,

[} In case of promotion, applications are called by paper notice and selected by an interviewing
panel participated by mimstry officials and members of governing body,

6. System and Contral

MNoted for serious attention on Controls given in
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